Mr S Hearse
Chief Executive
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700
Date:

25 May 2022

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES
COMMITTEE
On:

Monday 6 June 2022

At:

Venue:

Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford

6.00 pm

NOTICE OF MEETING

From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in person. The
Council is also required to follow Government guidance and ensure that all venues used
are Covid secure and that all appropriate measures are put in place. Members of the public
will be able to attend the meeting in person if they are registered to speak under public
participation. Any members of the public who want to view the meeting will be able to watch
through the Councils YouTube Channel https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube

To:

Councillor R Hicks (Chair)
Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley,
K James, N Laws, R Lock and D McGeough

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)
1.

Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.

Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 25 April
2022 (Pages 3 - 6)

3.

Public Contributions
Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme. (The deadline for
registering to speak is by 2pm Tuesday 31 May 2022. To register please email
dem.services@torridge.gov.uk).

4.

Forward Plan (Page 7)

5.

Declarations of Interest
Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the
nature of their interest when the item is being considered.

6.

Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II

7.

Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the
Chair and the Committee

8.

Leasehold disposal of part of the Sports Ground, Kingsley Rd, Bideford (Pages
8 - 30)
To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place

9.

Motion for the Ocean (Pages 31 - 34)
To receive the report of Head of Communities & Place

10. Exclusion of the Public
The Chair to move:
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph of Part I and paragraph 10 of
Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
11. PART II (CLOSED SESSION)
There are no Part II items
Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey

Agenda Item 2
1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING
Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford
Monday, 25 April 2022 - 10.00 am
PRESENT

Councillor R Hicks (Chair)
Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair)
Councillors D Brenton, C Bright, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley,
K James and R Lock

ALSO PRESENT

S Hearse
S Dorey
S Kearney
D Heyes
A Redwood
T Vanstone
K Brown

- Chief Executive
- Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring
Officer)
- Head of Communities & Place
- Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer)
- Major Projects & Estates Manager
- Senior Electoral & Democratic Services
Officer
- Democratic Services Officer

Councillors C Leather and S Newton
237.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D Bushby and N Laws

238.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD ON 14 MARCH 2022
It was proposed by Councillor Hodson, seconded by Councillor Lock
and Resolved: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 14th March 2022 be signed as
a correct record.
(Vote: For - Unanimous)
Councillor Dart was late to the meeting and did not take part in the vote.

239.

ACTION LIST
The action list was discussed and updated.

Page 3

2

The Head of Communities & Place assured Councillor Hodson that potential land
for burial sites was a constant project for the Estates Team and would be brought
back to this committee when the need arises.
240.

PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS
There were no public contributions.

241.

FORWARD PLAN
The Forward Plan was noted.

242.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they
related were under discussion.

243.

AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II
It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Lock and –
Resolved:

That the Agenda as circulated be agreed.

(Vote: For - Unanimous)

244.

URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE
The Chair advised that he had a matter that he wished to discuss but wanted it to
be discussed in Part II. This was agreed by the Committee.

245.

DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURE
Councillor Dart declared an interest, left the room and took no part in the debate.
The Head of Communities & Place presented the report, the purpose of which was
to report decisions taken under the Urgency Procedure.
The report was noted.

246.

UPDATE OF THE COUNCIL'S MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY
(MTFS)
The Finance Manager (S151 Officer) presented the report, the purpose of which
was to update Members of the Community & Resources on the Council’s MTFS,
reflecting emerging pressures and exploring the impact of changes to the
underlying assumptions within the MTFS reports to C&R on 31 st January 2022.

Page 4

3

A slide presentation was given by the Finance Manager (S151 Officer) which
highlighted the salient points in the report.
A discussion followed.
Following a query, the Finance Manager (S151 Officer) advised TDC could only
borrow money for capital investment not to balance the budget.
The Chief Executive and the Head of Communities and Place clarified to the
Committee funding that is now received.
The Chief Executive advised the group of the meeting Sir Geoffrey Cox MP, David
Heyes and he attended with MP Kemi Badenoch Minister of State (Department of
Levelling Up Homes and Communities) to raise issues surrounding TDC’s
settlement figure. Full Council had requested that TDCs settlement for 2022-23 be
raised with our MP and that representation be made to Government.
Three main areas of concern were raised at the meeting:
 How low TDCs settlement increase is compared to other similar Councils
 The financial and local tax impacts of properties moving from the Council
Tax register to Business rates and the mandatory reliefs awarded to those
business premises
 That the Rural Services Delivery Grant had not been inflated and that grant
is a large proportion of TDCs settlement
Government officials have been tasked to investigate the rationale behind TDC’s
figure. It was advised that TDC would have a response in writing.
The report was noted.
247.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Hodson and –
Resolved:
That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of the
likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
(Vote: For - unanimous)

248.

PART II (CLOSED SESSION)

Page 5

4

249.

NON-RECOVERABLE DEBTS
The Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) presented the report, the
purpose of which to update Members of further inquiries and to decide on the nonrecoverable debt.
A very brief discussion took place.
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Lock and –
Resolved: That the recommendations in the report be approved.
(Vote: For – unanimous)
Urgent Matter by Chair
The Chair raised a matter with the committee.
A discussion took place which concluded in the Chair and Chief Executive working
with officers to progress the matter.

250.

HATCHMOOR, GREAT TORRINGTON - SITE DISPOSAL
The Major Projects Manager presented this report, giving a detailed and
confidential update to Members on the acquisition of the land at Hatchmoor and to
seek approval to release the site for disposal, achieving best value for sale on the
open market through a regional commercial agency.
Following a discussion and consideration by Members of the report it was proposed
by Councillor Christie, seconded by Councillor Dart and –
Resolved:
That the recommendations in the report be approved.
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED)
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Hodson and –
Resolved: That the press and public be readmitted.
(Vote: For – Unanimous)

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and closed at 10.57 am

Chair:

Date:

Page 6

COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN – 2022/23
Leadership

24 May 2022

12 July 2022

6 Sept 2022

11 Oct 2022

22 Nov 2022

10 Jan 2023

Community
& Resources
(Mondays)

6 June 2022
6pm

25 July 2022
10am

12 Sept 2022
6pm

24 Oct 2022
10am

5 Dec 2022
6pm

23 Jan 2023
10am

Leadership only
Following
Business Plans:
1. HR &
Comms
2. Strat Perf &
ICT
3. Finance

Leadership only
Following Business
Plans:
1. Legal
2. Revs. & Bens
3. Public Health
& Housing
4. Operational
Services

Leadership only
Following Business
Plans:
1. Economic
Dev
2. Planning
3. Major
Projects
4. Estates

21 Feb 2023

Budget
Special
30 Jan
10am

6 March
2023
6pm

28 March 2022

Tuesday
11 April 2023
10am

Finance
Performance
Other

Sports Ground –
Jurassic Fibre
(NA)

Page 7

Cllr Hodson Notice
of Motion – Motion
for the Ocean (SK)

Leadership only –
Middle Dock (CF)
The Globe – financial
decision (CF/SK)
Hols Agri-Bus. Centre
Phase 2 Skills / R&D
centre options
commission
Bid Football Club (AR)
Bradworthy – Public
toilets (AR)

One Northern Devon
– consider prop. of
granting £12,000.00
to the scheme. (SH)
PART II
Rec. from Harbour
Board
Re: Moorings

Disposal of Winkleigh
Surgery (NA)
Victoria Park & Rugby
Club Proposal? (NA)

Agenda Item 4

Hatchmoor Land
Disposal (AR)
Environment Centre
(AR/SK)

Agenda Item 8

REPORT OF

Head of Communities and Place

To:

Community and Resources Committee

Subject:

Leasehold disposal of part of the Sports Ground, Kingsley Rd, Bideford

Date:

6 June 2022

Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To consider a new leasehold interest of 15 years of part of the Sports
Ground, Kingsley Road, Bideford to Jurassic Fibre Limited for a compound to house a telecoms
container to supply the local area with full fibre
1.

INTRODUCTION

Jurassic Fibre, an Ultra-Fast fibre ISP, approached the Council in February 2021 with a proposal to
install a secure container on a small piece of land adjacent to the skate park as part of its roll out of
a new digital broadband network the aim of which is to bring full fibre to the South West. This would
necessitate the Council agreeing terms with Jurassic Fibre, planning consent, Fields in Trust
consent and the consent of the Council

2.

REPORT

Jurassic Fibre, an operator with rights under the Electronic Communications Code, initially
proposed a 15 year lease with an upfront payment of £12,000 and the option to renew for a further
15 years to install and maintain a 8ftX8ft secure container surrounded by 1.8 metre palisade
fencing. The £12,000 payment was increased after negotiations to £15,000 and a further payment
of £15,000 index linked (CPI) on renewal.
Operators under the Code have statutory rights and are responsible for site selection. Unless there
is a very compelling reason not to agree with their site selection, it is very difficult to refuse their
application.
The site is complicated by the fact that it forms part of the area that is currently licensed to Bideford
AFC. As Bideford AFC is a licensee they do not have exclusive possession over the land and
therefore their consent is not needed.
Jurassic Fibre obtained planning permission on 7th October 2021 for the installation under planning
consent reference 1/0630/2021/FUL
An application was submitted to Fields in Trust in February 2022 for their consent to the letting. FIT
disposal policy dictates that either replacement land was provided by the Council or a donation by
the Council/Jurassic Fibre was made. Jurassic Fibre agreed to make a donation to FIT of £5,000
and the FIT Land & Planning Committee approved the application on 6th April 2022.

3.

IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications

Page 8

Conveyancing to agree lease
Financial Implications
Capital receipt of £15,000 now and a further receipt of £15,000 subject to indexation should
the lease renew at the 15 year point
Human Resources Implications
Officer input into disposal
Sustainability Implications
n/a
Equality/Diversity
n/a
Risk Management
n/a
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Supporting businesses and the local economy with improved digital connectivity
Ward Member and Leader Member Views

3.

CONCLUSIONS

The lease agreement for the leasehold disposal of the land at the Sports Ground represents
an opportunity to achieve a capital receipt of £15,000 and also will help with the provision of
high speed broadband to the local community.
5.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members approve the proposal for the leasehold disposal of the small parcel of land at the
Sports Ground, Kingsley Road as detailed in this report and give authority for the
completion of the associated lease documentation.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Consultations: Senior Management Team
Contact Officer: Nick Argles
Background Papers: Lease agreement dated 20/01/2022, Planning consent reference
1/0630/2021/FUL

Page 9

Torridge – a great place to live, work and visit
Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon, EX39 2QG

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
(as amended)
PLANNING PERMISSION

TO

Jurassic Fibre
Ottery Moor Lane
Honiton
EX14 1BW

APP NO
PARISH

1/0630/2021/FUL
Bideford (08)

REGISTERED ON

23rd June 2021

DECISION ON

7th October 2021

The Torridge District Council pursuant to the provisions of the above-mentioned Act hereby grant
planning permission for the
Proposal:
Location:

Creation of a compound to include a kiosk unit, concrete slab for placement
and 1.8m high steel palisade perimeter fencing
The Sportsground Kingsley Road Bideford Devon

In accordance with the above numbered application and plans submitted therewith SUBJECT TO
the following conditions and reasons:
1

The development to which this permission relates must be begun no later than the expiration
of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted.
Reason: The time limit condition is imposed in order to comply with the time requirements of
Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
plans listed in the Plans Schedule.
Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

PLANS SCHEDULE:
Plan Type

Reference

Received

Location Plan
Block Plan
Floor Plan
Proposed Elevations
Proposed Elevations

JFL 108.101
JFL 108.102
JFL.108.001
JFL.108.002
JFL.108.003

01.06.2021
23.06.2021
23.06.2021
23.06.2021
01.06.2021

Page 1 of 4

Page 10

Torridge – a great place to live, work and visit
Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon, EX39 2QG

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
(as amended)
PLANNING PERMISSION

TO

Jurassic Fibre
Ottery Moor Lane
Honiton
EX14 1BW

APP NO
PARISH

1/0630/2021/FUL
Bideford (08)

REGISTERED ON

23rd June 2021

DECISION ON

7th October 2021

STATEMENT OF ENGAGEMENT:
The National Planning Policy Framework (paragraphs 38) requires local planning authorities to work
positively and proactively with applicants to achieve sustainable development. Throughout the
application process guidance has been given to the applicants and all outstanding issues have been
identified.
In this instance the Council required clarification on a couple of points following the consultation
process. These were clarified by the Agent and submitted for further consideration.
The Council has therefore demonstrated a positive and proactive manner in seeking solutions to
problems arising in relation to the planning application.
The scheme is therefore considered appropriate and in accordance with Policies:
North Devon and Torridge Local Plan 2011-2031:
ST06 (Spatial Development Strategy for Northern Devon's Strategic and Main Centres); DM11A
(Telecommunications); ST04 (Improving the Quality of Development); DM04 (Design Principles);
DM01 (Amenity Considerations); DM08 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity); ST14 (Enhancing
Environmental Assets); DM05 (Highways); DM06 (Parking Provision); ST03 (Adapting to Climate
Change and Strengthening Resilience);
Government Guidance:
NPPF (National Planning Policy Framework); NPPG (National Planning Practice Guidance); NERC
(Natural Environment & Rural Communities); WACA (Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981);
It is therefore considered that subject to the compliance with the attached conditions and taking into
account all other material planning considerations, including the development plan the proposal
would be acceptable.

Page 2 of 4

Page 11

Torridge – a great place to live, work and visit
Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon, EX39 2QG

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
(as amended)
PLANNING PERMISSION

TO

Jurassic Fibre
Ottery Moor Lane
Honiton
EX14 1BW

APP NO
PARISH

1/0630/2021/FUL
Bideford (08)

REGISTERED ON

23rd June 2021

DECISION ON

7th October 2021

NOTE TO APPLICANT
Your attention is drawn to Condition(s) that may appear on this consent that may require certain
details to be agreed prior to either the development being commenced, or certain works being
carried out. It is important to recognise that failure to comply with such a condition or conditions
may render any development carried out unauthorised, and open to the possibility of enforcement
action.

NOTES
1.
This permission does not grant consent for works involving the demolition of a non –listed building in a Conservation
Area or a listed building or for its alteration or extension in any manner which would affect its character as a building
of special architectural or historic interest, for which, by virtue of Sections 8,60,74 and 75 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, a separate Listed Building Consent or Conservation Area Consent
may be required.
2.
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Local Planning Authority to refuse permission or approval for the
proposed development, or to grant it subject to conditions, then you can appeal to the Secretary of State under
section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. Within 8 weeks (display of advertisement), 12 weeks
(householder and minor commercial applications) or 6 months (all other applications) of the date of this notice.
Appeals can be made online at: https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate.
If you are unable to access the online appeal form, please contact the Planning Inspectorate to obtain a paper copy
of the appeal form on tel: 0303 444 5000.

Page 3 of 4

Page 12

Torridge – a great place to live, work and visit
Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon, EX39 2QG

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
(as amended)
PLANNING PERMISSION

TO

Jurassic Fibre
Ottery Moor Lane
Honiton
EX14 1BW

APP NO
PARISH

1/0630/2021/FUL
Bideford (08)

REGISTERED ON

23rd June 2021

DECISION ON

7th October 2021

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for the giving of a notice of an appeal, but will not normally be
prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal.
The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it appears to the Secretary of State that the local planning
authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed development or could not have granted it
without the conditions they imposed, having regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions of any
development order and to any directions given under a development order.

3.

4.

5.
6.

If you intend to submit an appeal that you would like examined by inquiry then you must notify the Local Planning
Authority and Planning Inspectorate (inquiryappeals@planninginspectorate.gov.uk) at least 10 days before
submitting the appeal. Further details are on GOV.UK.
If permission to develop land is refused, or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Local Planning Authority, or
by the Secretary for the Environment, and the owner of the land claims the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use by
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted. In these circumstances, the owner may
serve a purchase notice on the Council of the district in which the land is situated. This notice will require the
Council to purchase the owner’s interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 1 of Part V1 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
If an enforcement notice is served relating to the same or substantially the same land and development as in your
application and if you want to appeal against your local planning authority’s decision on your application, then you
must do so within: 28 days of the date of service of the enforcement notice, or within 6 months (12 weeks in the
case of a householder appeal) of the date of this notice, whichever period expires earlier.
Please now apply to Torridge District Council for an official postal address for your new property asap. Please go to
our website (www.torridge.gov.uk/SNN) which contains more information about the process.
THIS IS NOT A BUILDING REGULATION APPROVAL
Please contact Building Control on 01237 428724 for further advice

Page 4 of 4

Page 13

POP Site Agreement Template

JFL-A869-POP

BACKGROUND
a)

The Code facilitates the deployment of electronic communications apparatus by
persons in whose case it is applied.

b)

The Code has been applied to the Operator by virtue of a direction under section 106
of the Communications Act 2003.

c)

The Grantor is the freeholder and a Trustee of the Fields in Trust.

d)

This Lease is a Lease pursuant to paragraph 9 of Part 2 of the Code. It sets out the
contractual basis upon which the Grantor as Trustee is willing to confer code rights in
respect
of
that
land
on
the
Operator.

Page 14

JFL-A869-POP
This Lease is made on
and the Fields in Trust

between the Grantor, Operator

1

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1

In this Lease, the following words shall have the following meanings:
"Act" means the Communications Act 2003
“Access Route” means the route giving access from the nearest
public highway across the Grantor’s Land to and from the
Communications Site and shown red on the Plan
"Apparatus" A 4.7m by 5.8m compound which will house a 3.3m by 2.3m telecoms
cabin for the distribution of a fibre network, to include any future alterations to or
upgrades of the Apparatus that are made in accordance with this Lease and/or
pursuant to the Code
“Bond” means the retained sum of £10,000 (ten thousand pounds)
"Code" means the Electronic Communications Code set out at Schedule 3A to the
Act
"Code Rights" means the rights set out at clause 2.1
“Commencement Date” means the date of this agreement
“Communications Site” means the area of land to be subject to this Lease and
shown by a green box on the Plan
“Completion of the Works” The completion of the installation of the apparatus,
being the 4.7m by 5.8m compound, and the installation of the fibre network to the
satisfaction of the Grantor.
"Electronic Communications Apparatus" shall have the meaning ascribed to that
term in paragraph 5 of the Code
“Grantor” Torridge District Council of Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon EX39 2QG
“Interested Party” The Fields in Trust being the Trustees of Bideford Football Club of
Bideford AFC, Kingsley Road, Bideford
“Land” The Grantor's land being part of the title DN546264 of Bideford AFC, Kingsley
Road, Bideford and shown edged black on the attached Plan.
“Lease” means this Lease between Torridge District Council, Jurassic Fibre Limited
and Fields in Trust
“Material Breach” means:
(a)

a breach of any of the obligations set out in clause 4; or

(b )

a breach that has a serious effect on the benefit the terminating party would
otherwise derive from this agreement

“Operator” Jurassic Fibre Limited (company registration number 11427267) of:
Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 15

JFL-A869-POP
(a) registered office address - 6th Floor 33 Holborn, London, England, England, EC1N
2HT; and
(b) business address – Sowton Business and Technology Centre,
“Plan” the plan attached hereto and parked “Plan”
“Retained Land” Land shown edged black on the Plan
"Term" means the period during which this Lease is in force, which shall be a
period of 15 years starting on the date hereof unless terminated pursuant to clause 9
“Works” To install a 4.7m by 5.8m compound which will house a 3.3m by 2.3m
telecoms
1.2

cabin for the distribution of a fibre network

In this Lease, unless expressly stated otherwise:
1.2.1

Unless otherwise specified, a reference to a law is a reference to it as it is in
force for the time being taking account of any amendment, extension,
application or re- enactment and includes any subordinate legislation for
the time being in force together with all orders, notices, codes of practice and
guidance made under it.

1.2.2
time

A reference to laws in general is to all local and national laws in force for the
being.

1.2.3

Any obligation in this Lease on the Operator not to do something includes an
obligation not to agree to or suffer that thing to be done and an obligation to
best endeavours to prevent that thing being done by another person.

use
1.2.4

Unless the context otherwise requires, where the words include(s) or including
are used in this Lease, they are deemed to have the words 'without limitation'
following them

1.2.5

A person includes a corporate or unincorporated body.

1.2.6 Except where a contrary intention appears, a reference to a clause is a
reference
to a clause of this Lease and clause headings do not affect the
interpretation of
this Lease.
1.2.7

The Operator includes the person who, at any particular time, is given the right
by this Lease to possess the Property. Where the Operator is two or more
persons, obligations expressed or implied to be made by or with the Operator
are deemed to be made by or with such persons jointly and severally.

1.2.8

The rules about serving notices in Section 196 of the Law of Property Act 1925
(as since amended) apply to any notice given under this Lease.

2

RIGHTS OF THE OPERATOR

2.1

In consideration of the covenants set out at clause 4 of this Lease and the payment
referred to in clause 3, the Grantor and the Interested Party hereby agree that the
Operator shall have the following rights for the Term (together, the "Code Rights"):

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 16

JFL-A869-POP
2.1.1

to install the Apparatus on, through, under or over
the Land;

2.1.2

to keep installed the Apparatus, which is on, through, under or over
the Land;

2.1.3

to inspect, connect, maintain, adjust, alter, repair, operate or (subject to clause
2.3) upgrade the Apparatus, which is on, through, under or over the Land;

2.1.4

to carry out any works on the Land for or in connection with the installation of
the Apparatus on, through, under or over the Land;

2.1.5

to carry out any works on the Land for or in connection with the maintenance,
connection, adjustment, alteration, repair, operation or (subject to clause 2.3),
the upgrading of the Apparatus, which is on, through, under or over the Land;

2.1.6

to enter the Land with the prior consent of the Grantor not to be reasonably
withheld:
2.1.6.1 to inspect, connect, maintain, adjust, alter, repair, operate or (subject to
clause 2.3) upgrade the Apparatus, which is on, through, under or over
the Land; and
2.1.6.2 in connection with the exercise of the Code Rights

2.1.7
the
2.1.8

to lop or cut back, or require another person to lop or cut back, any tree or
vegetation that interferes or will or may interfere with the Apparatus with
consent of the Grantor not to be unreasonably withheld.
to allow third party access to help maintain, repair or upgrade equipment and
utilities with prior written consent from the Grantor which is not to
unreasonably be withheld.

2.2

Subject to clause 2.3, the Operator may also share the use of the Apparatus with another
Operator and carry out any works to the Apparatus to enable that sharing to take place
if necessary consents are in place.

2.3

The Operator may only upgrade or share the Apparatus (and exercise the associated
rights set out in clauses 2.1 and 2.2) if:
2.3.1

as a result of the upgrading or sharing, any changes made to the Apparatus
have no adverse impact, or no more than a minimal adverse impact, on its
appearance;

2.3.2

the upgrading or sharing does not impose any additional burden on the Grantor,
including:
2.3.2.1 anything that has an additional adverse effect on the Grantor's
enjoyment of the Land; or
2.3.2.2 anything that causes additional loss, damage, or expense to the
Grantor.

2.4

The rights of entry set out in clause 2.1 may be exercised by the Operator with or
without workmen, vehicles (where appropriate), plant equipment or machinery with the
prior written consent of the Grantor not to be unreasonably withheld.

3

PAYMENT

3.1

The Operator agrees that it will pay to the Interested Party a bond of £10,000 (ten
thousand pounds) prior to the Commencement of Works.

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 17

3.2

JFL-A869-POP
The Operator agrees that it will pay to the Grantor, in respect of this lease, the sum of
£15,000 (fifteen thousand pounds) to be paid in full within 30 days of Completion of
Works.

4

OPERATOR'S OBLIGATIONS

4.1

The Operator covenants with the Grantor and the Interested Party that it will:
4.1.1

exercise its Code Rights in a proper and workmanlike manner taking all
reasonable precautions to avoid obstructions to, or interference with, the use of
the Land retained land and so as to cause as little damage, nuisance and
inconvenience as possible to the Grantor and any occupiers of any adjoining
land;

4.1.2

do as little physical damage as is reasonably practicable in exercising its Code
Rights and, as soon as reasonably practicable, make good to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Grantor, all resulting damage caused to the Land or any
retained land within 1 month after whichever is the later of:
4.1.2.1 the date of such damage; or
4.1.2.2 the date on which either party has become aware of such damage

4.1.3

exercise its Code Rights and use and operate the Apparatus in accordance with
all applicable legislation;

4.1.4

obtain and maintain in force any necessary consents for the installation and
retention of the Apparatus (in terms of the rights provided), provide evidence of
any such consents upon written demand to the Grantor and carry out all
works in accordance with such consents;

4.1.5

maintain and keep the Apparatus in good repair and condition and so as not to
be a danger to the Grantor, its employees or property, or the occupiers or any
retained land;

4.1.6

pay all rates or other charges that may be levied in respect of the Apparatus or
the exercise of its Code Rights; and

4.1.7

maintain insurance up to a maximum of five million (£5,000,000) with a
reputable insurance company against any liability to the public or other thirdparty liability in connection with any injury, death, loss or damage to any
persons or property belonging to any third party arising out of the exercise by
the Operator of the rights granted under this Lease and provide details of such
insurance and evidence that it is in force to the Grantor upon reasonable written
request.

4.1.8

To provide one community building with 12 month free broadband service
within the network footprint.

5

THE GRANTOR'S OBLIGATIONS

5.1

The Grantor agrees that it will:
5.1.1
5.1.2

not cause damage to or interfere with the Apparatus or its operation and not
permit any third party to do the same;

give reasonable prior written notice to the Operator of any action that it intends
to take that would or might affect the continuous operation of the Apparatus,
including (but not limited to) causing an interruption to any power supply to
which the Apparatus is connected; and
Page 18
Thursday, June 3, 2021

JFL-A869-POP

6

OWNERSHIP OF THE APPARATUS
The Apparatus shall remain the absolute property of the Operator at all times.

7

INDEMNITY FOR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS

7.1

The Operator will indemnify the Grantor up to a maximum of one million pounds
(£1,000,000) against any third-party actions, claims, costs, proceedings or demands
("Third Party Claim") arising as a result of any act or omission by the Operator in
exercising its rights under this Lease, except to the extent that the Grantor's acts or
omissions have caused or contributed to any such Third-Party Claim and provided that:
7.1.1

the Grantor shall as soon as reasonably practicable give notice in writing to the
Operator of any Third-Party Claim brought, made or threatened against the
Grantor;

7.1.2

the Grantor shall not compromise or settle such Third-Party Claim without the
express written consent of the Operator (which shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed);

7.1.3

the Grantor shall permit the Operator to defend any Third-Party Claim in the
name of the Grantor at the expense of the Operator; and

7.1.4

nothing in this Lease shall restrict or limit the Grantor's general obligation at
law to mitigate a loss or liability it may suffer or incur as a result of an event that
may give rise to a claim under any indemnity in this Lease.

8

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

8.1

Nothing in this Lease limits or excludes the liability of either party:
8.1.1

for death or personal injury resulting from its negligence;

8.1.2

for any damage or liability incurred as a result of fraud or fraudulent
misrepresentation by that party; or

8.1.3

where or to the extent that it is otherwise prohibited by law.

8.2

Subject to clause 8.1, the Operator's liability under this Lease to the Grantor shall be
limited to the sum of five million pounds (£5,000,000). This limitation of liability shall not
apply to the indemnity granted under clause 8.1.

8.3

Subject to clause 8.1, the Grantor's liability under this Lease to the Operator shall be
limited to the sum of five million pounds (£5,000,000).

9

TERMINATION

9.1

Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, either party may terminate
this agreement with immediate effect by giving written notice to the other party if:
9.1.1
9.1.2

the other party commits a material breach of any term of this agreement and
(if such breach is remediable) and

fails to remedy that breach within a period of 30 days after being notified in
writing to do so
Page 19
Thursday, June 3, 2021

JFL-A869-POP
9.2

Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, either party may terminate
this agreement on giving not less than 6 months' written notice to the other party.

9.3

On termination of this Lease (except where the Lease continues in accordance with
paragraph 29(2) of the Code), the Operator will as soon as reasonably practicable
remove the Apparatus from the Land and make good any damage to the Land
caused by its removal to the reasonable satisfaction of the Grantor.

10

Option to Renew

10.1 The Operator may exercise the option to renew at any time during the Term by
serving notice to that effect on the Grantor at least 6 months prior to expiry of
the Term.
10.2 If the Option is exercised in accordance with the terms of this agreement, the
Grantor shall grant to the Operator and the Operator shall accept from the
Landlord the New Lease on the terms set out in this agreement.
10.2 If the Operator exercises the Option to Renew then the paym ent for the
new Lease will be the sum of £15,000 or the Open Market Rent whichever
is the higher value.

11

ASSIGNMENT/ASSIGNATION

11.1 The Operator may assign this Lease to another Operator who will be bound by its
terms with effect from the date of the assignment with the written consent of all parties
to this Lease
11.2 The Operator will not be liable for any breach of this Lease occurring on or after the
date of the assignment if:

12

11.2.1

the Grantor is given written notice of the name of the Operator's assignee and
the assignee's address for the purposes of clause 12.1; and

11.2.2

that notice was given prior to the breach occurring.

NOTICES

12.1 Any notice given under this Lease must be in writing and signed by or on behalf of the
person giving it and will be deemed to have been given if it is personally delivered or
sent by special delivery or recorded delivery addressed to the relevant party at its
address set out on page 2 (and a copy of any notice to the Operator must also be sent
to its business address set out on page 2) or, in either case, such other address as either
party may notify to the other in writing from time to time.
12.2 Each party's address referred to in clause 12.1 will also constitute their address for
service for the purposes of paragraph 87(2)(a) of the Code.

13

GENERAL

13.1 The parties confirm that:-

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 20

a)

b)

JFL-A869-POP
the Landlord served a notice on the Tenant, as required by section 38A(3)(a) of
the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954, applying to the tenancy created by this Lease,
before this Lease was entered into a copy of which notice is annexed;
the Tenant made a declaration dated
2022 in accordance with the
requirements of section 38A(3)(b) of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 a copy of
which declaration is annexed to this Lease;

there is an agreement for Lease to which this lease gives effect; and the form of this Lease is
in all material respects the same as that which was in their contemplation at the time
that the Landlord served the notice referred to at
11.5(a) above.
13.2 The parties agree that the provisions of sections 24 to 28 of the 1954 Act are
excluded in relation to the tenancy created by this Lease.
13.3 This Lease will not apply to any part of the Land which is or (from the date of such
adoption) becomes adopted as highway maintainable at the public expense.
13.4 In the event of any inconsistency between this Lease and any provision of the Code,
the Code will prevail.
13.5 This Lease is the entire Lease between the Grantor and the Operator relating to the
Apparatus at the Land.
13.6 Unless expressly stated, nothing in this Lease will create any rights in favour of any
person pursuant to the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.
13.7 Each provision of this Lease will be construed as a separate provision and if one or
more of them is considered illegal, invalid or unenforceable then that provision will be
deemed deleted but the enforceability of the remainder of this Lease will not be
affected.
13.8 This Lease is governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, the laws of
England and Wales
13.9 The parties agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of England as
regards any disputes or claims arising out of this Lease.

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 21

JFL-A869-POP

FORM OF NOTICE THAT SECTIONS 24 TO 28 OF THE LANDLORD AND TENANT ACT
1954 ARE NOT TO APPLY TO A BUSINESS TENANCY
To: JURASSIC FIBRE LIMITED (company registration number 11427267) whose
registered office address is 6th Floor 33 Holborn, London, England, England, EC1N
2HT
From: TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL of Riverbank House, Bideford, Devon EX39 2QG
Date:
IMPORTANT NOTICE
You are being offered a lease without security of tenure. Do not commit yourself to
the Lease unless you have read this message carefully and have discussed it with a
professional adviser.
Business tenants normally have security of tenure - the right to stay in their business
premises when the Lease ends.
If you commit yourself to the Lease you will be giving up these important legal
rights.
--You will have no right to stay in the premises when the Lease ends.
--Unless the landlord chooses to offer you another Lease, you will need to leave the
premises.
--You will be unable to claim compensation for the loss of your business premises, unless
the Lease specifically gives you this right.
--If the landlord offers you another Lease, you will have no right to ask the court to fix the
rent.
It is therefore important to get professional advice - from a qualified surveyor, lawyer or
accountant - before agreeing to give up these rights.
If you want to ensure that you can stay in the same business premises when the Lease
ends, you should consult your adviser about another form of Lease that does not exclude
the protection of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954.
If you receive this notice at least 14 days before committing yourself to the Lease, you will
need to sign a simple declaration that you have received this notice and have accepted its
consequences, before signing the Lease.
But if you do not receive at least 14 days notice, you will need to sign a 'statutory'
declaration. To do so, you will need to visit an independent solicitor (or someone
else empowered to administer oaths).
Unless there is a special reason for committing yourself to the Lease sooner, you may want
to ask the landlord to let you have 14 days to consider whether you wish to give up your
statutory rights. If you then decide to go ahead with the agreement to exclude the
Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 22

JFL-A869-POP

protection of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954, you would only need to make a simple
declaration, and so would not need to make a separate visit to an independent solicitor.

We, JURASSIC FIBRE LIMITED (company registration number 11427267) whose
registered office address is 6th Floor 33 Holborn, London, England, England, EC1N
2HT:
1

We propose to enter into a tenancy of premises at The Grantor's land being part of
the title DN546264 of Bideford AFC, Kingsley Road, Bideford for a fifteen year term
commencing on

2

We propose to enter into an agreement with Torridge District Council (the
'Landlord') that the provisions of sections 24 to 28 of the Landlord and Tenant Act
1954 (security of tenure) shall be excluded in relation to the tenancy.

3

The Landlord has, not less than 14 days before the Tenant entered into the tenancy,
or (if earlier) become contractually bound to do so served on the Tenant a notice in
the form, or substantially in the form, set out in Schedule 1 to the Regulatory
Reform (Business Tenancies) (England and Wales) Order 2003. The form of notice
set out in that Schedule is reproduced below.

4

We have read the notice referred to in paragraph 3 above and accept the
consequences of entering into the agreement referred to in paragraph 2 above.

5

I am duly authorised on behalf of the Tenant to sign.

DECLARED this

day of

2022

………………………………………

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 23

JFL-A869-POP

The Common Seal of TORRIDGE
DISTRICT COUNCIL was hereunto
affixed in the presence of:

.......................................................
(Authorised Signatory)

Executed as a Deed on behalf of
JURASSIC FIBRE (company
registration number
11427267)
........................................................
(Authorised Signatory)

Executed as a Deed on behalf of
FIELDS IN TRUST

........................................................
(Authorised Signatory)

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 24

JFL-A869-POP

APPENDICES

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 25

JFL-A869-POP

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 26

JFL-A869-POP

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 27

JFL-A869-POP

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 28

JFL-A869-POP

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 29

JFL-A869-POP

Thursday, June 3, 2021

Page 30

Agenda Item 9
REPORT OF

Head of Communities & Place

To:

Community and Resources Committee

Subject:

Motion for the Ocean

Date:

06/06/2022

Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
To present the Motion for the Ocean.

1.

INTRODUCTION
At Full Council on the 11th April 2022 Cllr Hodson presented a written Notice of Motion
requesting that Motion for the Ocean to help this Council play their part in realising a clean,
healthy and productive ocean and all of the direct economic, health and wellbeing benefits it
will bring.
Cllr Hodson requested that the Council agrees to declare an urgent need for Ocean
Recovery and adopts the Motion for the Ocean by committing to the pledges and action set
out in the recommendations section of the report.
Councillor Hodson proposed that the Motion be referred to Community & Resources
Committee, not for financial commitment, but for agreement to embed the principles into
operational practices and future coastal education and decision making. The written notice
of motion was unanimously support by Full Council.

2.

REPORT
The health of the oceans is inextricably linked with climate and with human health,
wellbeing and prosperity. A healthy ocean is fundamental in regulating the global climate
system and is an essential ally in our fight against climate change. The ocean absorbs
more than 90% of the excess heat in the climate system as well as absorbing around
20% of annual carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions generated by human activity.
However, decades of marine exploitation and pollution have led to significant levels of
degradation, and this together with the detrimental impacts of our changing climate on
marine ecosystems has led to national and global recognition that the world ocean is in
crisis. An unhealthy ocean does not absorb or store carbon as effectively as a healthy one,
further worsening the impacts of the climate crisis.
The UK Government’s recent Marine Strategy assessment confirms that our marine
environment is not healthy. An ocean in crisis is not only bad news for our climate, but
also for our local fishing and tourism industries and for the health, wellbeing and prosperity
of our coastal communities.
The ocean is vital for our economy. It is essential that our beaches do not
become full of litter or our tourist industry will take a real hit. Already marine microplastics
have been found in all marine environments and in the bodies of many species, including
humans and the species of fish we regularly eat.

Page 31

Our residents are on the frontline of climate change and are being disproportionately
impacted relative to inland communities. The impact of the climate crisis on the ocean is
profound, from rising water temperatures and changes in ocean chemistry, to sea level
rise and increased storminess, including in our local waters. This is accelerating the
erosion of our coastline - increasing the risk to infrastructure and properties, and
increasing the risk of flooding and storm damage.
Urgent action is needed to halt these devastating changes and recover the health of our
ocean to enable it to deliver the full range of benefits, including climate regulation, carbon
storage in coastal and marine habitats, coastal protection, a thriving local economy, clean
safe recreation and happy, healthy coastal communities.
In Torridge the ocean is at the heart of our heritage and economy. From the commercial
activity in the Port of Bideford , to the thousands of visitors who come to our coast to
experience the sight, sound and feel of the ocean. The ocean can play a vital role in our
economic recovery and we must strive to develop a sustainable and equitable blue economy
that delivers both ocean recovery and local prosperity. We must ensure that ocean recovery
is embedded in our relevant strategic decision-making, policy-making and budget-setting; as
well as being considered in future strategies and plans, including those seeking to improve
the health and wellbeing of our residents.
At present, not everyone has the opportunity or means to access and enjoy the ocean.
First-hand experience of the ocean is essential if people are to be motivated to play their part
in protecting it, whether that is through disposing of their litter responsibly, recycling what
they can or volunteering in ocean conservation with local organisations. Helping individuals
develop their ocean literacy (understanding of the relationship between people and the
ocean) is an essential part of this motion, as is individual and collective marine citizenship
(promoting and demanding an ocean recovery through local, national and international policy
changes).
Local authorities cannot solve the ocean crisis alone, but can play an important role.
3.

IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
N/A
Financial Implications
Within existing resources
Human Resources Implications
Within existing resources
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
As set out in the body of the report
Equality/Diversity
As set out in the body of the report

Page 32

Risk Management
As set out in the body of the report
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Pledge in accordance with the Council’s climate emergency declaration
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications
N/A
Climate Change
N/A
Ward Member and Lead Member Views
Date of Consultation – Cllr Hodson 23/05/22 – Member to present this item
4.

CONCLUSIONS

In order that action can be taken to protect our marine environments the Council should consider
declaring the urgent need for Ocean Recovery.
To do that the Council will need to accept that ocean recovery is essential to address the climate
emergency.
5.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the following pledges are made as a response to the Motion for the Ocean.
This Council pledges to:
1.

Review within twelve months the actions and projects that have been undertaken to
promote ocean recovery for the coast of Torridge District.

2.

Consider ocean recovery in our strategic decisions, plans, budgets and
approaches to decisions by the Council (particularly in planning, regeneration,
skills and economic policy), aligning with climate change mitigation and
adaptation requirements, and considering ocean-based solutions in our journey
towards a carbon neutral and climate resilient future.

3.

Ensure that the Local Nature Recovery Strategy strives to support ocean
recovery.

4. Work with partners locally to deliver increased sustainability in marine industries
and develop a sustainable and equitable blue economy that delivers ocean
recovery and local prosperity.
5. Communication through our social media of actions which are being taken to aid
ocean recovery progress, signpost ocean literacy development opportunities, and
marine citizenship pledges.
6. Write to the Government asking them to put the ocean into net recovery by 2030

Page 33

by:
a) Ensuring Inshore Fisheries and Conservation Authorities and Natural
England have the resources they need to effectively research and
monitor our growing number of marine protected areas, and to set and
enforce appropriate fishing levels that support local economies and
deliver environmental sustainability.
b) Ensuring coastal communities have a meaningful say in the development
of marine policy to ensure it delivers equitable and sustainable
outcomes.
c) Appoint a dedicated Minister for Coastal Communities.
d) And by listening to marine scientific advice, including marine social
science, to update the Marine Policy Statement and produce a national
Ocean Recovery Strategy which will:
i) Enable the recovery of marine ecosystems rather than managing
degraded or altered habitats in their reduced state.
ii). Consider levelling up, marine conservation, energy, industrial growth,
flood and coastal erosion risk management, climate adaptation and
fisheries policy holistically rather than as competing interests.
iii). Develop a smarter approach to managing the health of the entire
ocean that moves beyond Marine Protected Areas and enables links to
be made across sectors towards sustainability.
iv). Establish improved processes for understanding the benefits of ocean
recovery, leaving no doubt the links between this and human lives,
livelihoods, and wellbeing.
v). Stop plastic pollution at source by strengthening the regulations
around single-use plastics and set standards for microfibre-catching
filters to ensure that all new domestic and commercial washing machines
are fitted with a filter that captures a high percentage of microfibres
produced in the wash cycle.
SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Consultations:
Contact Officer:

Date of Consultation –Chief Executive, Deputy Leader, S151
Officer, Head of Legal and Governance
Officers Consulted Sean Kearney

Background Papers:

Page 34

